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INTRODUCTION

The aim of this analysis is to identify that which is original: form, materials,
components and finishes. This knowledge is intended to be used as a guide to
alteration or development. It may generally be assumed that the which is original
is of more interest than that which is later, although it may not necessarily be
the case.

The identification of that which is original, old, of interest, or of value is not
necessarily an argument for its preservation. The whole picture must be
considered.

7 Fitzroy Square is part of the terrace composition designed by the Adam brothers
for the west side of the square. A detailed description and history of the
development is given in the extract from the Survey of London, section 5

The Survey of London is useful in giving a reasonably full description at the mid
20™ century. The detailed at the mid 20% century. The detailed elevation drawing
in the Survey (Plate 18) appears to be very accurate — for example accurately
recording the size and shape of individual stones in the fagade (although these
must have been some invention where there was bomb damage see the
photograph, section 7. If a similar accuracy extended to the arrangement of
glazing bars certain  windows can confidently be dated to after 1949.

The large three storey (basement, ground and 1% floor) rear extension appears to
have been constructed in the 1960s or 1970s. It is a steel framed building with
brick walls. Although a building of almost the same footprint is shown on the OS
Map 1953. The OS Map 1916 shows the mews house still in existence. Whatever
the date of the building it is clearly 20™ century. It has no historic or architectural
interest and is therefore excluded from this Analysis.

SITE AND OVERALL FORM

The map extract reproduced in section 6 is undated but clearly dates from before
1832 when the west side of the Square was developed. No doubt, it accurately
shows the form of the buildings on the east side: bow fronts to the garden
facades, small rear extensions behind the stairs in each house and at the end of
each garden a mews building opening onto Grafton Mews.

For reasons given in Section 3 it is believed that the original rear extension was of
Jjust two storeys, basement and ground floor.

The overall form and mass of the building has survived including the original rear
extension. The form of the original garden and mews has been completely
obliterated.
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ROOF

DESCRIPTION AND ANALYSIS OF FEATURES

Original configuration but artificial slates with concrete hip and ridge tiles,
asphalt gutters. Access shack onto roof. Rainwater directed through front roof- the
original arrangement.

6 N° A/C chillers, 2N° dishes, 1N° aerial

Original chimneystacks and party walls with a collection of pots.

FRONT ELEVATION

Reasonably intact Adam design.

The ground floor and basement have huge openings for large windows, the
Survey of London suggests these openings were made before WWII

Masonry: largely original. The ground and basement painted. Several large
render repairs at 3™ Floor level. Blue plaque above door. The decorative swags
above the 2™ floor Thermal window have been lost but the ghost of their
attachment remains.

Windows:

3™ floor: 2N° 3 on 3 with horns probably modern; 1N° small circular (now blind)
modern; 1N° round headed 2 on 2 with homs if the drawing in the Survey of
London is correct (and it may not be) this window, shown in the Survey as 1 on 1,
1s modern.

2" floor: Thermal window, 3 on 3 with horns in centre with casement lights to
either side Victorian or modern; 1N° 3 on 3 with horns Victorian or modem.

1¥ floor: large triple light with blind centre of 12 on 9, original. As with the 3
floor the Survey of London shows a different arrangement of glazing bars for the
other 3 windows, 9 on 9 but they are in fact 4 on 4 with homs, if the Survey of
London is correct these windows are modern, they are in any case clearly not
original.

Ground floor: huge triple window in metal frame 1930s?

Basement: as ground floor but with light steel bars in front.

Doors

Front door: possibly original the side lights now blocked. The fanlight original
but with the centre section lost. The step, threshold, etc very recent, an unknown
stone (or screed?) to the wrong profile i.e. with nosings.

Basement: modem flush door. The basement area steps are concrete perhaps mid
20t century.

Railings




1* floor: original in reasonable condition
Ground floor: largely original, gate down to basement, no lamp standards and
other losses.

REAR ELEVATION

In stock brick. The rear extension adjoins at Basement, Ground and 1* floor level
with a minuscule lightwell between. Bowed elevation to the rooms, straight to the
parts corresponding to the stairs,

The elevation appears to have been rebuilt from the second floor cill level up to
the roof parapet. The Survey of London makes no mention of bomb damage to
N°7 (although it notes it for other properties in the Square) the rebuilding could be
before WWII or more recent.

The pattern of brickwork suggests the original rear extension existed on the
Ground and Basement only.

Windows:

3™ floor: 3N° 3 on 3 with horns probably modern.

2" floor: 2N° 3 on 6 with horns Victorian or modem. To stairs 6 on 6 original
with original glass.

1¥ floor: 2N° 9 on 9 with horns Victorian or modern. In front original light
balconies to catch wandering children or lap dogs.

Ground floor: 1N° Victorian or possibly original window in the bow but reglazed.

All other windows facing the lightwell are modern.

Basement: 1N° Victorian or possibly original window in the bow. IN® Victorian
window in the original small rear extension. All other windows are modern.

THIRD FLOOR

The stairs are probably in more or less their original position. The E-W wall
between stairs and rooms appears to be solid and may be original, everything else
is modemn.

Stairs to Roof (almost certainly not part of the original layout) Modemn S/W stairs
in plasterboard and stud enclosure.

Generally:-

Modern newel stairs up from 2™ floor.

Modern plasterboard and steel partitions with modem fibrous plaster egg and
dart comice.

Carpeted floor, new

Pressed 6 panel or flush doors

SECOND FLOOR

The same as the 3™ floor.




STAIRS SECOND DOWN TO GROUND

Original stone stairs with original balustrade and original mahogany handrail.
The stone painted. Newly carpeted throughout.

FIRST FLOOR

The original plan form was about certainly just a large front room, facing the
square and an almost equally large rear room with a bow to the garden and the
stairs to one side. The small rear extension does not appear to have existed at this
level as indicated by:
1) the external walling
1) the opening into the modern rear extension appears to be an
adapted window opening.
At some stage the front room has been divided with a lightweight stud wall
running E-W, this small room has been further sub-divided by a lobby.
Front Room
Ceiling: Old, possibly original cornice but more likely Regency or Victorian. The
ceiling has been plaster underlined thereby compromising the top moulding. The
cornice continues on the introduced E-W wall.
Modern fibrous plaster ceiling rose.
Walls: Modern picture rail, dado and skirting
Floors: New carpet throughout.
Fireplace: Modem (glass fibre?) with Victorian style grate.
Windows: Original shutters painted shut. Modern architraves.
Doors: Possibly original with modemn architraves.
No doors between front and rear rooms.
Rear Room
All as front except:-
Walls: also lined with a sheet material (pinboard?)
Windows: Modern with plastered reveals.
Modern Side Room
Ceiling: lowered ceiling with modern fibrous plaster cornice.
Walls: Modern dado and skirting
Fireplace: None
Doors: All modern.

GROUND FLOOR

The original plan form can just about still be made out: a large dining room at the
front of the house with a buffet recess at the back, the recess indicated by the two
slight projections from the wall in the centre room. A smaller ante-room with bow
window to the garden. The entrance hall. The stairs. The small rear extension,
perhaps a closet, now containing the ladies lavatory.




Hall and Stairs

Ceiling: Original cornice clogged with paint.

Walls: Modern dado (and up the stairs) modem or Victorian skirting.

Floor: Modem hardwood with marble inserts.

Fireplace: None.

Doors: Front/door and internal surround mostly original. Others all modern with
modern architraves (some panelled, some flush, some pressed).

Front Room (Dining Room). Now divided by a modem N-§ wall.

Ceiling: remains of original cornice very heavily paint clogged on 3N° walls.
Walls: Modern picture rail, dado and skirting.

Floor: as Hall.

Rear Room

Ceiling: remains of original cornice very heavily paint clogged.

Floor: New carpet.

Window: painted shut with later glass, plastered reveals and later (?) surround.
Ladies lavatory all modem.

BASEMENT

Other than the stair enclosure the original plan form has been lost. It is pretty
much one large room.

Stairs: Plasterboard and stud enclosure, the stairs covered in sheet vinyl with
aluminium nosings. S/W balustrade.

Other parts

Ceilings: Heavily patched and repaired plaster on -—. In places one can see
behind the plaster beams and joists and the underside of boards supporting
pugging.

Walls: Plain plaster

Floors: screeded.

Windows: Back window in remains of eriginal surround.

Doors: modern

Gents lavatory all modern
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LVI-—FITZROY SQUARE

This square is relatively small in size but is notable for its fine
architectural treatment, The east and south sides were designed by the
Adam brothers and exhibit their skill in introducing novelty without im-
pairing the dignity and balance of their composition. The north and west
sides were bwilt after the lapse of some years; they are less ambitious but
contrive to harmonize well with the general character of the Adams’ work.

The east side was begun first. The leases are dated from August,
1792, to January, 1793,% the site at the corner of Grafton Way (formerly
Street) together with No. 1, adjoining it on the north, being leased to David
Piper.* Nos. 2, g and 10 were in the name of James Adam and Nos. 3 to 8
in the names of James and William Adam. All the leases were to run for
99 years from Michaelmas, 1789. In 1798 they were fully tenanted with the
exception of Nos. 4, ¢ and 10,

The leases for the sites on the south side ran for the same period,
but are dated January, 1794.5° There were 8 houses here, Nos. 27 to 34,
later re-numbered 33 to 40, from west to east. Nos. 27 (33) to 31 (37)
were leased to James Adam, Nos, 32 (38) and 34 (40) to James and William
Adam and No. 33 (39) to Thomas Bert, carpenter, at the request of the
brothers. In 1798 there were tenants in four houses only (see p. 62).

The north side was evidently building in 1827 and 1828 and con-
sisted of nine houses numbered 11—19 from east to west, the leases of which
expired midsummer, 1924. Nos. 11 to 13 were leased in April, 1828, to
Edward Marshall,* Nos. 12 and 14 in January of the same year to Richard
Barker,® and No. 15 in December to Joseph Faulder.®? The remaining leases
are dated 1827, Nos. 16 and 17 to Joshua Mayhew®® in May and June, and
Nos. 18 and 19 to George Spencer Smith® in January.

The west side, of which the leases range from 1832 to 1835 (all
terminating midsumimer, 1924} provided for 13 houses numbered 20t0 32 from
north to south. George Spencer Smith had six, William Bigg and Richard
Wade two each, John Turner, Charles Grant and John Collier, one each.5

ARCHITECTURAL IDESCRIPTION

East Side. For this side of the square Robert Adam designed an
imposing range of buildings four storeys high above a basement, The original
drawing, with figured dimensions, and an engraving of the design (Plates 16
and 17) show only minor differences from the work as executed, and both
show an extension northwards along upper Fitzroy Street. Adam's design
was evidently intended from the first to give a special architectural treatment
to the square itself, irrespective of the planning of the houses behind this
fagade, and to set this off by the simpler and more functional adjeining street
fronts. The fact that the party walls between the houses do not correspond
with the main structural features of the principal range is proof of this.

* The ikase to David Piper, brickluyer, was at the reguest of James and William Adam,
32




FITZROY SQUARE

This east side, including its northern extension, provided for cleven
houses, each with about 24 feet frontage. The southernmost house was
orjainally No, 18 Grafton Sireet (now ( rafton Way} and has since heen
known as 1a Fitzroy Square, It occupies two-thirds of the south wing,
Nes. 1; 2 and 3 include the remainder of the south wing, two-fifths of the
central feature and the intervening space. No. 4 occupies the remainder of
the centre and Nos. § and 6 the space between this and the north wing,
threc-guarters of which is filled by No. 7. The remaining quarter is the
entrance to No. 8 which, with Nos. g and 10, extends beyond the square.

The plan of each house follows the usual London type, bemng two
roonis deep, the front room flanked by the entrance hall and the back by the
stuircase. In some cases the back wall is bowed. Behind the stairs are
cxtensions, probably of later date; leaving a small courtyard for light to the

ack rooms, On the first floor the front room is larger, covering both the
entrance hall and front room of the ground floor.
: The fagade is of Portland Stone and has three slightly projecting
architectural sections, one central and one at each end, which are more ornately
treated than the stretches between them (Plates 18 and 19). .

The basement has open arcas guarded by plain railings with spear-
head stanchions and & top band of open lozenge ornament. The masonry of
the ground storey is rusticated with V-jointing and consists of a series of
arches within which the doorways and windows are set, At the springing
level is a moulded string-course along the whole front, and the doorways
are flanked by wooden pilasters wide enough to be pierced by lightsy the
doors are generally six-panelled and in some cascs the four upper panels
are glazed.  Most of the fanlights are original with radiating bars, but a few
have been replaced by modern glazing. The doorway to No, 4is in the middle
of the central projecting feature and has two windows to the north of it and
the doorway to No. 3, immediately to the south with one of its windows in
the central feature and-one beyond. At the first-fioor level is a string-course
with a moulded lower edge. The second and third storeys of the c¢entral
reature are divided into three bays, the middle one recessed with three-
juarter lonic columns, distvle in angis, embracing both storeys. Fach of
the five first-floor or sccond-storey windows (three in the recessed middle
bay)is a tall square-headed opening set in a round-headed recess which has
a solid tympanumy at their springing level is a continuous moulded impost,
interrupted in the main recess by the Tonic pilasters, The windows have
separate Balconies, The third storey has shorter square-headed windows.
Above the third storey is an entablature which extends along the whole
fagade, with varying enrichments in the fricze and a bold cornice. In this
central featur:&c frieze is plain in the recessed middle bay, but in the
two side bays it is carved with festooned rams’ heads and futings, The
attic (fourth storey) above the main cornice is also recessed in the middle
and has three windows and square pilasters above the Tonic pilasters, Flank-
ing the centre on each side are long panels containing bullseye lights,

The north end or projecting wing has two original doorways, Nos, 7
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ST. PANCRAS

and 8, but the ground floor window between them is 2 modern alteration of
a large square-headed type with rustivated voussoirs, The second and third
storeys have a middle recess entirely occupied by 2 wide window, which is
divided into three lights by columns with acanthus leaf and fluted capitals;
the middle light is glazed up to the level of the main entablature of the recess,
but the side %ghts are now reduced by about 2 ft. at the heads. Above this,
the whole opening has a segmental arch to form a three-light lunette to the
third storey. In each of the projecting side bays, the second storey has a tall,
harrow, round-headed recess, reduced in width for a square-headed light
below a solid tympanum. Lach window has its own railed balcony. The
main frieze has flutings in the side bays but is plain in the middle. The attic
storey has four windows, but in the middle s a low wide panel with a central
bullseye light flanked by carved flutings now of cement, This shows an
alteration from Adam's design which had five bullseye windows,

. The south wing has suffered badly from war damage and most of the
upper parts of the third and fourth storeys are now missing. It paired with
the other, but the ground storey retains the original fenestration, two round-
headed windows between two larger similar openings, the northern being the
doorway to No. 1; the southern is a window. The frieze of the main
entablature has swags as decoration, but only a scrap remains; over the north
bay it 1s fluted.

The two sections between the centre and the wings have plain square-
headed windows to the upper storeys and long continuous balconies at first
floor level. The frieze under the main cornice is enriched with the copventional
shell and foliage ornament seen in other Adam designs, but much of it has
perished by decay.

The south end wall, towards Grafton Way, is of brown brick with
quasi-masonry in stucco to the ground storey and has a later side-entrance
with a portico with Doric shafts. In the front half of the wall are blanks
instead of windows.

North of the main fagade is an extension, which is shown on Adam’s
drawing (Plate 16), with a plain Portland Stone ashlar front. It has a central
round-headed doorway (No. 9) with a plain glazed tympanum and all the
windows are square-headed. It has an upper cornice, much the same as in
the main fagade, but slightly lower and without a frieze. Over the north
half, but missing in the south half, is a balustraded parapet, and behind it is a
mansard roof instead of an attic storey. No. g (the British Drama League)
occupies the north half of the house and the south half is a girls’ hostel
(Garfield House), with its entrance (No. 8) in the north projecting feature
of the main block, facing the Square.

The interiors have not a great deal of ornament. The ceilings are
plain, except for their cornices. All the staircases are of stone and there
is some variety in their iron balustrades; all have mahogany handrails,
starting. with a spiral at the ground floor and ramped at the landings.
The balustrades, with one exception, have ornamental open standards
of light and simple wrought-iron scrolled strap-work between pairs of straight
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FITZROY SQUARE

uprights, the lower halves repeating the upper in reverse, They are alike in
Nos. §, 6 and 7, and have 2 middle vertical bar with scrolled ends, below and
above bands of rings with small applied embeilishments, Tn No. 8 they
have double scrolled straps in cach half with pendants where they meet
in the centre. These are evidently original and are separated from each other
by one or two plain bar-balusters. The stairs in Nos. 3 and 4 are variations
from the normal arrangements starting from the south and narth respectively
at the bottom, and rising westwards instead of eastwards. The balusters of
No, 4 are a little more elaborate, having a central oblong ring between the
uprights with radial leaves, and trilobe pendants above and below, Those in
No, 3 bear some resemblance to them. In No. 2 the.standards are altogether
more complex in design with a pair of long scrofled straps of lyre form instead
of straight uprights.

The cornices. of the plaster ceilings also vary, being generally enriched
with acanthus or other foliage while some have square brackets with soffit-
rosettes. In No. 3 the entrance hall has brackets with rams’ heads imitating
those in the main cornice in the fagade and its ground-floor rooms have friezes
with swags between roundels which contain figures of pasy,  The back room
on the first floor of No, ¢ has 2 very deep enriched frieze.

The original fireplaces that still exist in Nos. 4 and 5 are of wood;
others are of white marble. No. 7 (the. London and Provincial Friendly
Society) is much modernized and has ne original fireplaces in position, but
stored. loose in the basement is one of soft wood. It {;as side pilasters with
applied acanthus leaf caps and a plain. frieze panel, The ground floor of
No. § (Easterns Ltd.) has, in its front and back rooms, waod fireplaces with
applied scroll ornament, also of wood, to the friezes. The first-floor front
room (part of Messrs. Tibbetriham’s furniture workshops) has 2 similar fire-

lace with an enriched pulvinated frieze, but in poor condition. Messra.
fgla_sternm also occupy the ground-floor rooms of No. 4. The back room has
a2 wooden fireplace with heavy applied wooden scroll ornament in the fricze,
In the entrance hall of No. 4 {part of Messrs. Tibbenham's furniture show-
rooms) i another wooden fireplace with a fluted surround and a frieze
decorated with a middle urn and scrolled foliage, all applied in wood, and a
shelf-cornice enriched with leaf carvings. It is said to be the only old one in
these premises. No. 3 (St. Carlo’s Hotel and Restaurant) has a white marble
fireplace in the ground floor front room with reeded pilasters and a middle
panel in the lintel containing a classical urn in relief. A plainer fireplace in
the back room has papelled pilasters and lintel, the only decoration being oval
bosses above the pilasters.

The southernmost house, struck by a bomb in 1940, is gutted and
roofless; only a fragment of the first fioor is left against the south wall,
showing the panelled ground floor ¢eiling and enriched cornice. Al the
chimney-pieces are missing and the stone staircase destroyed, The next house,
No. 1, was less badly damaged and retains its floors, but the staircase is des-
troyed. No. 2 was the Ear, Nose and Throat Hospital, and is now used by
Messrs. Tibbenham’s for storing and repairing furniture. [thas 1 gth-century
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marbile fireplaces. No. B, the south half of the north extension of the main
building (Garfield House), has a white marble fireplace in the ground floor
front room; the lintel has a middle panel with a figure of Mercury with his
caduceus, etc., and above the pilasters are women dancers with cymbals and
tambourine. That in the back room has an urn in 2 panel as in No, 3. No. 6
%Messrs, Briggs & Johnson), first floor, has plain marble fireplaces but the
ront room has an iron stove or grate with an almost circular opening, and a
ribbed surrounding frame finishing with volutes at the hearth, The recess
behind it for the fire is two-thirds circular in plan.

The original internal doors that still survive, mostly from the entrance
and stair halls to the rooms, are six-panelled with a raised rib-mould inside
each panel, of mahogany. In some cases only the original architraves are left,
‘ South Side. The range on the south side of the square, between
Conway Street (Southampton Street) and Fitzroy Street, was aleo designed
by Robert Adam, and appears to have been built immediately after the east
side. The treatment of the one resembles the other, but here the wings
and the centre block are all narrower, corresponding to the shorter length
of the building, the centre on the south being similar to the ends on the east.
There are eight houses, now numbered 33 to 40 from west to east (Plate 2¢).

Nos. 36 to 38, including the centre block, were almost completely
destroyed in the air-raids. The design of this central feature included two
pairs of lonic pilasters, traversing the first and second floors, each pair en-
closing a window on each floor, getwecu them was a segmental arch, spring-
ing from the level of the second-floor sills, and divided from a recess on the
first floor below by 2 band of masonry. .The recess was divided by two
Corinthian columns (with pilasters at the sides) into what would normally be
three windows, two only of which were formed since the party wall between
Nos. 36 and 37 necessitated a stone filling. The same thing occurred in the
triple division of the arch on the second floor. There are five bullseye lights
(the centre unpierced) to the attic storey, similar to those intended for the
ends of the east range, and shown on Adam’s drawing. The' doorways
adjoin one another in the centre.

The projecting end features have each 2 doorway (Nos, 40 and 33
respectively) on the side towards the middle of the front, and two windows,
The first floor or second storey has a window divided into three lights by
Ionic shafts (with antae), on pedestals supporting a plain lintel and string-
course, above which is a frieze with swag ornament, the whole within 2
square-headed recess. 'This i§ flanked by shorter square-headed blind
windows or recesses above a dado which has cap and base mouldings. Over
these are plaques with carvings in relief of human figures, probably classical
subjects, all rather weather-worn, Above the three windows of the third
storey is a frieze of which the middle part projects as a wide low panel, in
which again are seven small square panels with raised rosette centres: the
frieze flanking these wide panels is plain, but in the stretches between the
architectural projections it Eas the same conventional shell and foliage orna--
ment as on the east side. The top storey or attic in the end projection has a
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middle lunette window of three lights which is flanked by plain square
windows., This storey has a cornice and a one-course parapet, but in the
middle has a slightly higher feature which is faced with a centrzl roundel or
rese, flanked by flutings. In the west fearure the Autings are missing. The
iwo ends, towards Fitzroy Street and Conway Street, are of brick and have
mestly blank windows in the front half,

The interiors are of the same plan as in the east range, with howed
lack walls, etc.,, but the tenements seem to have conformed more regulazly
with the fagade. The staircases are of stone: in No. 40 (London Skin
Hospital} and No. 33 (London Foot Hospital) the balusters are like those in
No. 4 in the east range: those in No. 39 have extremely simple scrolls: in
the back wall are semi-circular headed niches.

The ceilings are plain with enriched cornices: the entrance hall of
"™, 39 kas human heads as brackets. Nos. 35 and 34 have rather heavy
coved cornices with acanthus leaves and horizontal fAutings.

The original fireplaces are of marble. In No. 40 the ground-floor
front room has a middle panel in the lintel with foliated scroll ornament, On
the first foor is an imported mid-late 17thcentury chimney-piece of cak
partly restored. The fireplace has eariched pilasters and fhuted frieze and is
flanked by detached Corinthian shafts, partly carved and purtly fluted. The
overmantel is divided into three bays by square pilasters and the two outer
bays have half-round recesses with shell-hoods and the frieze of the entabla-
ture is decorated with jewel ornament.

In No. 35 are ground-floor fireplaces with urns above the pilzsters,
but the lintels have been repaired or replaced by plain composition. On the
first floor both fireplaces have fluted pilasters, above which are foliage bosses
in the friezes; the lintels have three panels, the middle one fluted.

In No. 34 the rooms are packed tightly with furniture, concealing
most of the fireplaces, but two on the first floar are partly exposed and are
more elaborately carved than the others. That in the ﬁ}-)cnt room has 2 middle
carving in the lintel, of a woman (possibly Venus) with pxs or cherubs and
above the pilasters are pusri riding on delphins.* That in the back room has

‘nelled pilasters with straight pendants, and above them roundels in the
siezey the lintel appears to be 'pfain,

The internal doors zre similar to those in the east range but there are
overdvors in No. 39, one with an ogee-curved pediment and another with an
entablature with applied scroll ornament in the fricze.

West Side, Nos. 20 (north) 0 33 (south), The whole range is faced with
stucco, the design based approximately on the east range, i.e. with projectin
middle and end architectural features. The ground storey has the us;m%
imitation masonry with square-sunk jointing and round-headed doorways and
windows. The doorways have grooved or panclled wood pilasters with toliage
caps, moulded transomes and glized fanlights, ofp which somc are
original and others of later repair, The doors are gen erally six-panelled, with
belection mouldings.  The first-floer balcony railings have casts-moulded

* The pilasters are decorated at the tops with » hanping vase and two fesionns ahout human heads,
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balusters and in front of each window an ornate standard with elaborate
scroll-wark, }

The main cornice has a plain frieze to the three projecting features,
but not in the intermediate stretches. The central feature has a middle recess
with four tall Ionic pilasters carrying the entablature. The two bays flanking
the recess have segmental-headed windows to the ground storey and square
pilasters with enriched capitals to the upper storeys. (Plate 21) -

The entrance halls mostly have key patterns to the cornices and the
stone staircases have single-moulded balusters, rather like those to the -
balconies,

The North Side, Nos. 11 (eass) o 19 (wess), is designed similarly to the
west. Nos. 13 and 14 are modern. The ground storey has the sam¢ accen-
tuated jointing in stucco. The original middle projecting feature included
Nos. 14, 152nd 16. The two latter retain shallow square pilasters embracing
the second and third storeys—two to each house—with grossly exaggerate
volutes to the lonic capitals. The main entablature has a frieze with con-
ventional ornament, which is a crude copy of that in the south range. In the
middle feature the frieze is plain except for rosettes above the Tonic pilasters,
and in the end projecting features the middle parts have ranges of seven
square panels ancf) rosettes. ‘The attic storey in the middle feature ias pilasters,
and over each in the parapet is carved a laurel wreath, The entrance doors
have each two middle circular panels between long panels, above and below,
and with bolection mouldings. In No. 18 the circular panels have heavy iron
knockers, in Nos, 17 and 16 the wood panels are replaced by glass, and in
No. 12 the woodwork is enriched with carving, The two end houses, Nos. 11
and 19, have side entrances with porticos, The entrance halls have enriched
moulded cornices and the stone stairs plain iron bar balusters.

Inhabitames® Fast side—

No. ya.  (1793~1797) Willam Franks, (1798-1812) Jase Franks, (r8rg—1826) William
George Daniel Tyssen, (1829~1840) John Raphael, (1840) Mary Raphael, (1841~
1849) Rev. Henry Walker, (1850-1851) Mns, Jane Douglas Walker, (1855-1860)
William Butt, (1863-1875) John Napier, artist, (1877~1882) Anguste Adolphus
Youngman, {1887~18g3) St. Pancrss Constitutional Club.
William Franks was the son of William Franks, senior, (see No§ Percy Streer). He
and his wife, Jane, are commemorated by & memorial teblet at $t. Jobn's Kentish Town
(see 82, Pencras I1, p. 143).

No. 1, (1795-1804) John Dixon, {1805) Thomas Murdock, (18061818} Charles Lambert,
(1838-1843) Lucy Lambert, (1844~1863) Joseph Aaron, (1864-1872) Frederick
Willis Farrer, (1874~1879) Rev. }a.mes Freshfield, (1880-1881) Thomas Gullick,
portrait-painter, (1882~1893) Maria Gray School for Girls.

No. 2. (17935~1812) Manasse Lopez (Sir Mapane Lopez, Bt from 180g), {1813-18432)
Daniel Beale, (1843~1848) Frances Sarah Beale, (1848) Thomas Barbot Beale, (1850}
William Dyce, (1853~1869) James Sant, (1868-18g5) Thomas Francis Dicksse,
{1896} Frank Dicksee.
§ir Manassek Masseh Lopes, Br. (1755~1831) was the son of Mordecai Lopes {see 14

* The names of inhahitants have in the main besn taken from Sewer Rate-buoks and from Post
Ofiee Directoriss.
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Inkedivgnre Yast iidg——

No.

tar

Pércy Sireer). In r8e2 he loined he Church of Ergland, became ALP. for New
Bomney and received a btaronetcv. In subsequent electons his bribery of eleczors
reselted in @ heavy fine and imprisanment, He was later returned to Parliament for
Wesibury. He married Charlotte, dawghter of John Veates of Monmeuthshie,
Fle lert a fortane of {Bog,000. e had previously ived at 11g Charlorre Strest (29.).
Milliam Dyee (1806-1864), painter, eriginated the pre-raphaclite school of printing
in England, Appointed Professor of Fine Arts, King’s College, Lendon {(1844). R.A.
{1848). Was selected to carry out freseoes in the House of Lords {1846). Tihomes
Franciz Dicksee, artist, and Framk Dickier. The latter, Siv Francls Bernard
(Frank) Dicksee (1853-1928), painter, was son of Thomas Francs Dicksee (1819~
1895), painter gnd illuscrator.  His uncle, John Robert Dickses (1817-1905); was
also g painter (see INo. & Fitrroy Square).  Sir Frank Dicksee was made RA. {1897) and
president of the Royal Academy, He dielut 1, John's Wood.

{1797-176%) Sir Robert Stewars, Br.. (1799-18c4) Lady Stewart, (1807~1812) James
Smith of Ashlyns, (1813~-1849) Chasles Forbes (Sir Charles Forbes, Bi, from 1823),

(1844-1861) Lady Forbes, {1B55~1860) with Lady Forbes resided. James Stewart:

Forbes, {1803~1368) Miss Forhes, {1874~1880) George Ruphacl Ward, Sir Rodert
Steware, Bt., MLP. for Blackfriurs. 8ir Charles Forbes, Be. {1774-1849), merchant in
India, M.P. for Beverley {1812-18) and Malmesbury (1818~32), A Tory in politicy,
he supported Catholic emancipation and fémule suffrage but opposed the Reform Bill.
His stutue by Sir Franels Chamtrey srands in the Town Flall, Bombay., He was created
2 baroneét, 1823, Loy Fordes, widow of §ir Charles, was Elizabeth, daughrer of Major
John Cotgrave, Bhe died in 1861, )

{1Bo2-r812) Clarles, Viccount Dillon, (1815~1832) Lady Dillen, {1R38-1840)
Wiliam Wooldridge Stansfeld, {1%4r~-1850) Charles Slater Fowler and Edwad
Royull, (¥854~1865) Newenham Travers und Rev, James Carr, (1866~1899) James
Edmunds, M.D., (1581) Frank Elshet.

(1797—1802) James Akers, {18aq4~1808) Andrew Reid, {1810-1826) Williem Page

and D¢, Edward Page, (1829-1873) Dr. David Danie] Duvies, (18461 842) Thomas
Wakefield and Colonel Wright, {1843~1844) Williim Oliver, (18461852} Anthony
Ldward Angelo, (18531863} Nathan Defries, (1864~13869) Frederick Tuily Lo,
artist, {1870) Miss Gould, (r871-1879} Capt. John Evans, _
Hiddiam Lliver was powibly the landscape painter (1804 f~1853). He married Emma
Soplian Eburne of Rathbone Place who was also an artist.  He died ar Langley Mill
House, Halstead, Essex. Nathaw Defries, civil engineer (ses also 57 Grafion Way).
(1797-1826) Sir Edward Russell Howe, Bt, (1829~1848) Tdward Orme, (3852
1853) Henry Wallls, (1B54~1860) Henry Hickman Barnes, (¥862-1871) joha
Pettie und William Quiller Orchardson, (1874~1888) John Rebert Dicksee, Arthur
Henry Dichsee, Bernard John' Dicksee, Lawrence Robert Dicksze, and Jehn Charlon,
{r8go-18g2) Alexander Meiviile,
8ir Edward Russell Howe was Br. of Senzinghill, Windsor, Futs Persie (1839-1893),
ia.intcr, Born in Edinbuergh and stdied tnder Roberr Scott Lander. Me came 1o
sndon with bis friend Qrchardson and shared a stuciog first in Pimiice and then in
Fizzroy Square (DN 4, says Mo, 17, the directories No. 6). In 1865 he married and
left Orchardson.  R.A. (1879). He died av Hastings,  8ir W3iliam Quilier Orchardson
(1832=1910) wrtist.  Born in Edinburgh, like bis fiend John Pettie with whow he
studied. They were joined at Fitzroy Square by Tom Graham and C. E. Johnston.
He murried in 1873 and lived ar Notting. Hill and Spencer Street, Viztoria before
ﬁn‘a.l}}‘ takiog 13 Portland Place. He became RA. In 1577 and was knfghted in 1507,
His neme is given at 37 Firzrey Square for one vear {1863} where he may have had a
studion  Fobw Rebert Diekiee. ertist, whe was the uncle of Sir Frank Dicksee, {s¢e Ne.
2), Aribur Henry Dicksec, decorative riisy, Sermard Feohr Dickier and Lawrence Robere
Dicksee, ncccmntany, and Fehn Chariron, artist, were all living here at the same tme.
Alexancer Mcdeille, sriisy, was formerly 20 No. 14 {(7.02).
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Iniabitentr Bast side—

No. 7. (1795—1812} Jucob Bernel, {1814~1816) Lerd Thurlow, {18:7-1822) ]. §. Ash.
' burner, (1816-1833) Michie Farbes, (1836-1842) Mary Ann Forbes, (1844-1865)
Sir Charles Lock Lastlake,* (1865~1893) Lady Eastluke.
Edward Tharlow (later Hoveli-Thurdow) second Baron Thurivwe, minor poet, was the
son of Thomas Thurlow, bishep of Durham. O the death of his uncle, the first baron
Thurlow, Lord-Chancellor, in 1806, he succeeded to the title, He married, in 1813,
Mary Catherine Bolton, actress. 8ir Charles Lock Eastlake (1793-1863), painter,
vias president of the Royal Academy, 1850-6% and Secretary of the Fine Arts Commission
(for the decoration of the Houses of Parliament). Lady Eestlake (18091893}, was
Elizabcih, davghter of Dr. Edward Rigby of Norwich, authoress. Wrote on her
TharZee, experiences in Russia and 4 memoir on her husbead’s Hfe and work.
impalirg Bolton  Ne. 8. (r797-1803) Peter Douglas, (1803~1840) Thomas Wilkinson, (18411853 Elizabeth
. Dent, {1854y Lancelot Dent, (1860-.1880) Wilkinson Dent, {1890-18g2) John Dent,
Ne. 9. (1800) Crauford Bruer, (1802) M. Boneham, (1803~1821) John Forhes, (1824~
184g) Sir Charles Forbes and his sons, John (d. 1%40) and George, {1840} John M,
Teesdele, {1830) William Joy, (1852-1856) Willimm Oliver, {1863-186g) A. W.
Hoffman, (1869~1888) James Samuel Burrcughs. William Oliver and William Oliver,
Jun., oceur also during 86774,
For #illiam Jey, artist, see No. 10, A, W, Hoffman was professor of chemistry.
No. 10.  (1800) George Reid, {1812~1819) Capt. Sir Andrew Hamond, R.N., {1B21-1836)
John Winter, (1840~-1842) Mrs, Winter, {184} Edmund Lomax and (}ohn Fulling
Tarner, {1847-18350) William Joy, (1853-1856) William Gale, artist, (1856-1870)
Joseph ‘Wakefield Kent, (1871} Mrs. Kent, (1873~1877) Charles Edward Tapolin,
professor of lunguages, (1877-1887) Ladics School {Miss Rosalie Praetorius), (1890)
Josiah Nix.
8ir dndrew Snape Hamond, Br. (1738-1828), captain in the navy, Was present at
Quiberon Bay (1759). Knighted 1778. Governor of Nova Scotia and made a baronet
1783, MLP, for Ipswich 1798~1806. Comptroller of the Navy, 1794~1806. William
Joy, artist, Probably the murine painter (1803~1867). Apparently William Joy and
his brother John Cantiioe Joy lived together until the latter’s death in 1866. Miss Jessie
Joy’s name appears also. See also Nos. g and 33.
North Side—

No. r1. (1829-1833) Charlcs Harrison Badey, (1836-1845) William Hurndall, {1846-1848)
Alfred Buna, (1848) Medame Clare Stelli, (1850-1855) George Haynes, (1860
1868} Mrs. Haypes, (1869-1872) Mrs. Barter, (1873-1876) John Dicker.
Aifred Bunn (17961~1860), theatrical manager. Stage manager, Drury Lane, 1823,
Mansger of Birmingham Theatre, 1826. Mansger of Drury Lane and Covent Garden,
1833—46. Ha died at Boalogne.

No. rz2.  {1829~1830) Capt. ]. Huskisson, R.N,, (1832~1838) Mrs. Susan Mariz Beatty,
(1838—1846) Thomas George Fynmore, (1848~1855) Louis Graner, (1856) Henri de
Mussy Gueneau, M.Dv,, (r863-1872) William Trautschold, artis:.

No. 13 (r829~1865) Edward Marshall, {1866-1867) Nathan Jacob de Jongh, {1868-rgog)
Roland Plambe, architect, _
Edward Marséall, Chief examiner of army sccounts at the War Office (1842).

No. 14.  (1828~1860) Richard Pierce Barker, {187 1-1500) Robert Wiiliam Edis, architect.

Ne. 15, (1829~1846) Joseph Faulder, (1848-1860) Pauline Faulder, (1868-1877) Clement

TCSSEr.

Ne. 16.  (:1828-1853) Joshua Mayhew, (15¢4~1858) Joshua Dorset Joseph Mayhew, (1863~
187} Charies Brock. .
Charfes Brook, surgeon. Charles Brooke (1804-1879) surgeon and inventor noticed in
DANR.

* Sir Charles Bunlake acquired the luwse pf' the house from blary Forbes, widow of Jobn
Forbes, in 1842,
6o
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Iriaditansy North sidee

No. 17,

W 18,

No. 1g.

(1833) Esther Muris Lee, {1835) Ramsay Richard Reinagle, {1838) Svlvan van der
Weyer, (1B4r=1844) Wil Puorbes Langdon, (1844) Bdward Williarms, {1846~
18¢b) Major Williem Symende, (Lo Col. in 1858), (184} H. Clemeots, {1863)
James Simeon, (18651872 Mrs, Contes.

Rorriay Richard Reimugle (1775-1462), portruit, landscape and animal painter, son o
TLilip Reinay's, painter.  He wae president of the Sociey of Palters n Water Colours,
180f~32. R.A. 1823, bur was culled vpon 1o rusipn, 1848, He died a1 Chelses.
George Philip Reinugle, ke marine paimier, was kis youngest son. Syian cax der
Weyer, wis Belpian mninister,

(1831) Edward Lee, (1832-1838) Esther Mariz Lee, {18401 646) Thuinas Abbou
Greene, (1£47) Thamas Paly, {1819-1858) John Marmadule Teesdale, {1853-1806)
William Oliver, (1868-1870) James Harriy, (1871~1877) Thomas Plaus,

(1830} Capt. 1 V. Buker, (1843) Joha Tuihill, (1835) Jobn Valentine Baker, (18 38=
1860) Mayor Ger, Gooldfcllow, (1863~1875) William Chaers, {1877~ 1883} Gubrial
Wood, (1885-1187) Grorge Wells, astitr, and Luigi Cort, prosesor of music, (1586
18ac} Rebert Newberry, #iliom Chdffery (r811-1892), nomismutist, Auiher of
Hali Marks cn Go/d ard 5iiver Plate (2863} and Mards o5’ Mongyores on Pottery and
Porcelain (1862), Eiccred F.5.A. 1843; moved from Fitrroy Square 1o Wiilesden Lane
and thenee to West Hampsiead, where e died.

West dide—

YR TN

Na. 21.

No. 2z,

New 2.

No. 24

No. 2t

No. z6.

Ne, 24,

s
&
-
o

(1835-1838) George Jewit, {1840-1871) Clarles Coilier, phivsician, {1B72-1891)
Jobu Bykesand Frank James Sikes,

(x835~1738) John Murray, {(1840-1341) Dr. Jumes Arnoty, {184 3~1846) Gearge
Hamis Child, (1848~1855) Thomas Rowe Ldmands, {1848} Henry Ranke;, M.D.,
(186c) Lord Robert Cecll, {18635-186¢) William Pateman, {1870—-1876) Horatio
Nelsen Hardy, surgeon, (1878-383¢) Tole Haurver, MDD, {1886-1804) Charles
Vipelin, waod carver, _

(r832) I Villiers- Tohill, {1838-1843) Frederick Natusch, {1844~1853) James
Topiiss, Jun., (1855-1860) Architald Cimpbell Barclar, {1B03-1865) Mrs, Pollock,
(38701871} James Tennent Lyar, (1873-1905) Joscph Spoles.

Famei Tennent Lyon, artist in stained glass.  8See also Mo, 40,

(r838~1 £4¥) Charles Grant, {1848-7871) Lional Oiiver, {1872~1873) Hogarth Cluh,

(1874} Tom Gray, (1876=1B77) Mis, Sarterby, (1875 #g2) Mre, Robere Alexander.

(1B38=1850) Thomus Metealf, (1852-1804) Frederick Thavison.

{1838-1840) Williwrg Turner Haypward, (1547} Georpe Flaynes, {164q—184%)
Philip Hephes, (18521883} Chrivian Rudolph Weesel! {1864~1865 William Munra,
{1871) Richurd Jackson, (1672-1679) Richard Carbesry, (1680) Fraderick Grimwoad,
(1821) Richard Richardson, {1590-1893) Mark Boss, {1894—18g5} William Ficlding,
{1B36=1842) Dowager Lady Rarclify, (1843~1844) Thomus Peele (Peile), (18.44-
1847) Thomas Hanson Peile, (1849-1856) Joseph Amerbury, surgeon, (1860-1864)
Reuben Lawreace; {1865~1871) Rev, James Lousdale, (¥873~15743 John Hotn,
(7876~1892) Jacob Lovy, (18ci~1910) Mark Ros:.

Rev, Fames G. Lensdaie, He was the Rev. James Gyiby Lonsdale {1¥16-1F02), elduse
son of Jolin Lensdzle, bishop of Lichfield. From 1865 to 1870 was professor of clussical
literature at King’s College, London. Rector of South Laffenturs, Somerset (187073}
and Hartspill, Somerset (1873-78). He died at Buth.

(1828-1852) Henry Ellioy, (3853-18¢6) Jarzes Foy, (1850) George Sseley, (1B63—
1875) Lovis Hambert and Albert Hulnbers, zrchizect, {1877-15%g) Robern Shanks,
(1Bg1-1807) Wuiter Buckler Lethboidge. _

{1838) Joln Day, (184c=1848) NMary Sultwel, (1Bgo—1848) Edward Willbrahamn,
{1863—1866) Frederick Crockitrd, (1864) Donzld Curerer., (1870} Richard Modgson,
(1B74-1880) Alearder Opilvie, (1887~ 190’ Herbert Willinm Brighouse, surgeon,
{1835~1835) Guarge Briggs, {1841} Rovert Langler, {1¥43~1544) Heury Smpron,
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[nbabirants West side—

{1845~1847) Thomas Innis, surgeon, and Dr. Cooke, {1848} Samuel Ware, (1850~
1854) Isabells Ware, (1856~1858) Thomas Watson, (1860~1876) Mrs. Watson,
(1878) Miss Dixon, Miss Dodgson, and Mis, Sunley, (1881-1883) Edward Negroni,
teacher of singing, (1884-1887) Alfred Maximo Gaucl, {1886-87) Edward Ham-
mond, artist, (1888) George Bernard Shaw, (1980-18496) Joha Haunt,

No. 40.  (1835-1840) Susaonah Basenach, {r840) Willlam Wickey, (1841-1854) Gavin

Milroy, M.D., (1856-1866) Edward Newton, (186g—1871} Cherles James James,
(t872~1877) Mrs, Calvert {also at Ne. 41), {1830-1882) George Rdmund Stanley
Longford, architect {rer also No, 31}, (1884~1887) Mary Ann Wheeler.
Gavin Milroy {1805-1886), medical writer and founder of the * Milroy Lectureship
st the Royal College of Physicians. M.D. Edinburgh. Assisted in founding the
Hunterian Society. Samitary Commissioper t6 the army in the Crimea, FEdwerd
Newrom, surgeon. His name occurs in Howland Strest (r843-48).

No. 31, {1838) Edward Campbell, {1840) Raphsel Ward, (1842~1858) George Raphae] Ward,
{1849-1853) Willlam Bromley, (1853~1856) Edward Bromley, (1863~1871) George
Calvert, (1872-1877) M, Calvert, {1878~1886) George Edmund Stanley Longford,
architect {see alsc No. 36), George Raphar! Ward (1798-1878), sngraver, Son of James
Ward {1766-185g), engraver and peinter. He made miniature copies of portraits by
Sir Thomas Lawrence, but is better known by his engraved porwajrs, His deughter,
Henriettz, also an artist, married Edward Mawhew Ward, the historical painter. He
lived subsequently at Nos. 38 and 3 Fitzroy Square (g.2.).

No. 32, (r838-1841) Henry de Medina, (1844~1860) Henry Rendell Wotton, Frederick
W. Rawlins, Willium Armstrong (all surgeons), and Edward Griffichs, (1863~1874)
Madge Henry Madge, M.D),, (1B75~19-—) Thomas Stevens Gimson, surgecn.

South Side—

No. 33.  (18o5-1814) William Thomas Stratton, (1875~1825) Robert Mitford, (1326~1831)
William Elston, (1838-1841) John Wooderoffe, (1843~1846) Ellen Ryan, (1848)
Thomas Innis, (1852~18¢8) William Joy, (1860-1871) Jessie Joy, (1872-1883)
Middlesex (19th) Rifle Votunteers, (1884~19—) Royal Fusiliers (City of London
Regiment), (1891) Rev. Jacques Maussje.

IFilliom Fay, marine painter, see No, 10 and also No. 9.

No. 34 (1798) Sir Franch Lymn, (1800-1818) Duniel Beale, (1318-1830) Charles Snell
Chauncey, (1830-1838) James Henry Chambers, (1840} Elizabeth Chambers, {1843~
1849) Henry Smull, (1850) Samuel Howard, (1852--1854) Sareh Howerd, artist,
(1856-1858) Williurs Charles Thomss Deobson, (1863) Capt. Alexander Ridgway,
(1864~1874) Alezander Melviile, (1876-188g) James Dingley.
iFittiom Charies Thomas Dobson (1817-18¢8), painter. Fntered Royel Academy Schooks
{1836). Painted scriptural subjects. Elected R.A. {1872) and was msmber of the
Erching Ciub and the Royal Water Colour Society. He died at Ventnor. dlexander
Meiviiie, srtist {see also No. 6).

No. 35, (1802~1815) Lord Callan, (1816-1822) John Card,* (1825-1844) Cosmo Crme,
(1848-1855) Henry Redyard Bagshaw and William Henry Gunning Bagshaw,
{1858-1865) Louis Grada, (1866~1870) Alfred Rodrigues, (1871-1874) Gaspare
Gambogl, surgeon, (1875—1888) James Gow and Andrew Garrick Gow, artists.

Na, 36.  {(1797~1808) Patrick Cranford Bruce, (1810-1813) Nicholas Brown, (18z0-1837)
George Cowall, (1838-1844) Katherine Brown, (1847) Manuel Soares, (1848) Manuel
Joaquim Scares, (1850-1852) Training Institate for Nurses, (rf52) Willlam Mauitland,
(1856~1881) Solomeon Alexander Hart, (:883-1888) Artisey’ Regimeptal Club,
{18B7-1B88) Artsw Rifle Volunteers,

Solomun Adlexander Hort (1Bob=1881), painter. Painted bistorical picmtres. R.A,

* In 1316 the executors of Lord Callan assigned the leass 1o John Card, of Lioyd's Coffee
House, merchant and shipowner,
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Irkgsiranti South gideam.

No. 3%,

No. 38

Neo. 30.

i

a

b8

1B42, and was appointed professar of painting ni the Rovel Acalemy, 1354, From
18651881 he was librarian there. Ho died unrwrried st Fitzroy Square,
{(17g7-18c3) George Reid, (1804~1856) David Scott, (1809-1812) Frands Magniac
ind John Fitzgerald, (1817) John King, (1820-1826) Edward Strachey, (183¢~1840)
William Jubn Svsler, {1841-1849) Joserh Capell, (1852-1856) Celonel George
Pemberten, {186¢) Robert Baker, surgeon, (1863) Williarn Oreliardson, (1867-1883)
Ford Maddex Briswn, (18¢2-1900) Fruns Scheing, protessor of masic,
Ldward Srrackey was o friend of Thowas Carlyle. "3ir Wiiiiem Quiller Oredardion
{see No. 6).  Ford Madidox Browr (1821=1897), painter. Studied abroad; exbidited
at Royal Academy, 1841, Russeul became his pupil in 1848 and he was then broaght
in touch with the preaphaelies. e quarrelled with the Royal Academy in 12571,
Painted panels for Manchester Town Hall. One of'the fuunders of the Hogarth Cub
and partner in’ the firm of Morris, Marshall Fualkaer & Co. Buried at Finctler,
(18or=1¥12) Charies Baldero, banker, (1815-1838) Colonel Tohn Drinkwater, {r84c)
Robert Cogan, (1846-1860) Sir William Charics Ross, (186:-1873) George Raphael
Ward, (1874~1880) Richard Beavis, artist (ser alse No. 30).
Colonel Fohn Drinkovazer, probubly Johs Drinkwater {liter, Bethune, the name he
astumed afrer retirement] {1962~1844), Listoriun of the Siege of Gibraitar ar which
he was presest. Lieur, Colonel {1796) of the Manchester Regiment, Controller of
army accoants, (8111835, Died at Thorncroft, near Leatherhead, Surrey, Sir
IF5liiam Charles Ress (1794-1860) miniatore painter. Assistant to Andrew Robertsan,
Obuined & Jarge conncetion in Roval end aristocratic circles, Made R.A, (1843)
and knighted (1842). Ho died unmarded at Fitzroy Square. Georgr Rapiar! Ward,
engraver (e No. 31 and also Ne. 3).
(1798-1602) Charles Wilkins, (18231804} John Lewis Aariol, {1865=1840) Major
Mexander Orme, (1841-1846) Hannah Qrme, (1846~18¢8) Robert Turner, {1860}
Liti-Colonel Symonds, (1866) The Misses Symonds, (184g) Rev. Charles Fryer, MLA.,
%137:—1‘87.3} Thomas Davidson, (1874~1575) Henry Hersee, (188 t-1882) Riclard
eavis arust, (ulso ar No. 38). _ _
§ir Charles Wilking (1749 3-1836) orientalist,  Went t Bengal in 1770 in the service
of the East India Company. Lettin y786. Tn 1800 he became librarian to the Cormn-
pany. He-wus clected F.R.8., created D.C.L. (Oxon.) and was knighted, 1833, The
Roval Society of Literature awarded him their medal as ** princeps Bitteraturae Sanscrinoe.”
(1f01-1853) John Fuller, (18c4~183¢) William Huslowood, {1838-1846) William
Mezealf, {1848} John Hadman Wheelwright, (1850-18521) Jobn and Arther Houlton,
(1854~1856) William James Smich, (185%) William Spottiswood, {1566) William de
Morgan, (1663-1865) Rev. Willam Heatle Lyall, (15671871} James Tenpent
Lyen, (1871) Annie Livra Hervord, (1872) Syduey Hodger, artist, {1874-1891)
Baraewt Samuel Marks, drtist.
HWilliam Haslewood {also of 3 New Sguare, Lincolns Inn and Siay gham Perk, Sussex),
At Blaygham Church is a monument to Maria, wile of William Haslewood, died 1836,
Hritlians Mercalf, MUP, for Pyncmouth.  Fedn Haduwan Wheekeright, urist. #illam
Frend de Morgar {1839-1917), artiss, fventor and novelist. Born af by Gower Stree
and son of Augustus de Morgan, mathematician. Friend of Burne Jones, Rosserti and
Williazy Morris.  Married Evelyn Dlickering, pre-raphaclite painter. Excelled as a
potterand late in life wrote his inimitable novels.  He began his ceranmic experiments
at No. 40 Firzroy Square but afterwuards settled in Chelsea and his closing years were
spent &t Mo, T The Vale, See Survey of Cheliea, Part 11, PT- $9 and plate §4, showing
Mr. and Mrs. de Morgan in their garden. Fames Teanen! Eyon, artist in stained glass,
He also lived at No. 22 {g0.). Annie Lou-z Heriford, artiss, * Ehe was the first wouzn
student at the Roval Academy Schools, Hur renancy here went buck as carly as thar of
de Morgan (186c), since she gave the alerm when his kiln set fire to the roof of the rlse
(see A M. W. Stirling, Willian o Morpen and His ife, p. 78}
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FITZROY SQUARE (SOUTH AND EASTY, FROM ORIGINAL DRAWINGS AT THE SOANE MUSEUM
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FITZROY SOUARE (EAST AND SOUTH), FROM ENGRAVED DRAWINGS AT THE SOANE MUSEUM
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(a) No. 15, FITZROY SQUARE
(N. SIDE)

(¢) No. 33,
(S. SIDE)
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